
SOUTHAMPTON INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 
CONSULTATIVE COMMITTEE 

(Constituted under Section 35 of the Civil Aviation Act 1982) 
 
 

A R Ward 

Solicitor and Honorary Secretary to the Committee 

Eastleigh House,  
Upper Market Street  

Eastleigh,  
Hampshire  SO50 9YN 

Telephone:  023 8068 8000 
Fax No:   023 8068 8122  

 

 
DATE: 6 February 2015 

 
 

Friday, 13 February 2015 
2pm Civic Spitfire Meeting Room, Southampton Airport 

AGENDA 
 

Prior to the start of the meeting there will be a short session (maximum 15 
minutes in total) giving the opportunity to relevant organisations, whose 
interests are not formally represented by a committee member, to speak.  
Those wishing to participate should telephone the above number in 
advance of the meeting to book a place. 

 
1. Apologies for absence     
 
2. Minutes    (Pages 1 - 6)  

 To consider the Minutes of 17 October 2014.  
  
3. Airport Managing Director's Report    (Pages 7 - 16) 
 
4. Noise Action Plan     
 
5. Monitoring of the Flying Controls Agreement    (Pages 17 - 22) 
 
6. Technical Working Group feedback    (Pages 23 - 26)  

 Minutes of the Technical Working Group held on 27 January 2015 are attached.  
  
7. Date and time of next meeting     
 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 

SOUTHAMPTON INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT CONSULTATIVE 
COMMITTEE 

 
Friday, 17 October 2014  (2:00 pm – 3:55 pm) 

 
Councillor Godfrey G Olson  (Chairman) 
Councillor David Airey  (Vice-Chair) 
Richard Ward  (Hon Secretary) 
 
Members Present: 
 
Councillor S Barnes-Andrews Southampton City Council 
Councillor Geoff Harris Bishopstoke Parish Council 
Dave Lees Southampton International Airport 
Mark Miller Hampshire Chamber of Commerce 
Councillor Sharon Mintoff Southampton City Council 
Councillor J S Neal Test Valley Borough Council 
Diane Sebon Townhill Park Residents Association 
Mrs J Smith Bitterne Park Residents' Association 
Councillor Mike Southgate Winchester City Council 
Robin Tice Winchester City Council and 

(Winchester Air Group) 
 
Deputies Present: 
 
Mike Smith Bitterne Park Residents Association 
 
In Attendance: 
 
Mike Glen Southampton International Airport 
Dave Ingram Winchester City Council 
Karin James Eastleigh Borough Council 
Iain McDermott-Paine Southampton International  Airport 
Neil Scott Eastleigh Borough Council 
Steve Thurston Southampton International Airport 
 
Apologies: 
 
Gay Roberts Servisair 
Mr G Wilkinson Southampton Action for Access 
Councillor Anne Winstanley Eastleigh Borough Council 
Mrs Jan Halliday Southampton International Airport 
Councillor Alan Broadhurst Eastleigh Borough Council 
Steve Brine MP Winchester Parliamentary 

constituency 
John Denham MP Southampton Itchen Parliamentary 

Constituency 
Caroline Nokes MP Romsey and Southampton North 

Parliamentary Constituency 
Mike Thornton MP Eastleigh Parliamentary Constituency 
Alan Whitehead MP Southampton Test Parliamentary 

Constituency 

Agenda Item 2

1



2 

 

1. MINUTES 
 
The minutes of the meetings held on 11 February 2014 and 27 June 2014 be 
confirmed and signed as a true record of the meetings.  
 
Although none of the local Members of Parliament were able to attend on this 
occasion it was agreed to continue holding meetings on a Friday afternoon for 
the time being.  
 

2. AIRPORT MANAGING DIRECTOR'S REPORT 
 
Mr David Lees informed those present that Southampton Glasgow and 
Aberdeen Airports had been sold to a consortium formed by Ferrovial and 
Macquarrie for £1,048 million.  It was expected that the sale would be 
finalised by January 2015, and it was felt this would make very little difference 
to the day to day running of the Airport. 
 
Members of the Committee congratulated Mr Lees on the Airport’s recent 
write up in WHICH magazine.  Turning to complaints it was felt the complaint 
about the Lancaster arriving prior to the D-Day celebrations was rather 
disingenuous.  The complaints from the Reading area regarding a flight at 
9000 feet and was thought to be the result of a new website 
“Flightradar24.com” which could identify all flights.  
 
Following questions regarding the precautions around the Ebola problem Mr 
Lees advised those present that the Airport are maintaining close contact with 
authorities and larger airports.  Southampton would not be receiving any 
flights directly from affected areas and would be taking advice as and where 
necessary.  There was to be a forum held between Police, Fire and 
Ambulance regarding local resilience on Monday 20th October.  
 
The Committee accepted Mr Lees report with thanks.   
 

3. MEMBER CODE OF CONDUCT AND INDUCTION PACK (DRAFT)  - 
RICHARD WARD 
 
Richard Ward presented his draft Members Induction Pack and Code of 
Conduct which had previously been circulated with the agenda.  
 
It was agreed this would be made available on the Internet and circulated to 
all Members and Deputies and in turn that copies of the Code of Conduct 
would be signed and returned to Mr Ward.  It was explained that there was an 
expectation highlighted in the Constitution that Deputies would attend only as 
observers unless the Member were unavailable to attend.   
 
A question was raised about the non attendance of individual Members. it was 
explained that the Committee could only act when the whole representation of 
an organisation was in question.  Where an individual member did not attend 
it was a matter for that organisation to address.  Mr Ward did agree to write to 
Southampton City Council to ascertain whether they still wanted to have three 
members on the Committee. 
 

2



3 

 

It was also explained that currently the meetings were not public meetings 
although 15 minutes was available at the start of meetings for relevant 
organisations to make representation.  Although, where someone had 
expressed an interest in observing a meeting, no objection had been raised.  
 
It was noted there was no member of Tourism South East appointed to the 
Committee and it was agreed to write to them to ask for a nominee, also 
perhaps a presentation from them on their organisation. 
 

4. SCOPING NEW BUSINESS ROUTES - DAVE LEES 
 
Mr Lees explained it was not easy to scope new routes, and for obvious 
reasons operators wished to run profitable routes. To this end a Southampton 
University student was looking at key operators, surveys, MINT databases, 
qualitative telephone research and CAA organisation and destination date for 
2013, and European trade surveys. 
 
Germany had the highest number of exporting markets with Netherlands also 
scoring highly. 
 
Destinations from Southampton were weighted as follows: Madrid (a key 
destination requirement), Munich, Brussels and Frankfurt.   
 
Madrid - although a very attractive destination was already well served by 
Heathrow running an hourly service, meaning a daily service from 
Southampton would not be able to compete.   
 
Munich – good business involvement and numbers of passengers in the 
vicinity wishing to travel, currently there is no dominant carrier.  Companies in 
Munich included Vector Aerospace and Rolls Royce. 
 
Toulouse – 51,771 passengers in the area, again no dominant provider, local 
businesses include Vector Aerospace and Airbus Defence and Space Limited. 
 

5. LAUNCH OF THE HAMBURG ROUTE - DAVE LEES 
 
Hamburg has strong marine links and the new route to Hamburg commences 
on 27 October with the inaugural flight.  On the 11 and 12 November there 
was to be a media tour of Hampshire going to Winchester and Stonehenge.  
There was also to be a lunch and tour of the Queen Mary 2 which would be 
docking from Hamburg on its way to New York. 
 
Flybe would also be launching a business event with an aviation cluster visit 
on 25 and 26 November with the Airbus A320 being assembled in Tolouse, 
Hamburg and China.   
 
 

6. AIRPORT DEVELOPMENT UPDATE - STEVE THURSTON 
 
Steve Thurston Explained the 2014 completed works had been forecast as 
£4m and the current value to date was £2.6.  This spending included a new 

3



4 

 

website, new engineering systems, new airport vehicles and the creation of a 
larger departure lounge. 
 
Compliance and Risk Mitigations measures were underway and included the 
apron block paving being revamped, approach landing lights £452,000 being 
installed in the adjacent railyard, placing cables underground, light fittings and 
masts which could be lowered for maintenance making the process a lot 
safer.  
 
Fire Training Ground Rig (£1.3m):  ground rig with cockpit scalable to 
accommodate changes in aircraft type, and a concrete extension to 
accommodate longer rig with contained drainage. 
 
Solar Farm: Project deferred until 2015/16 due to issues with SSE electrical 
infrastructure outside of airport control 
 
Hotel: Develop 99 room hotel on ‘Pig Farm’ site. Local authority pre-planning 
application submitted and under review.  
 
Southampton Airport Enterprise Hub: Promote development of Ford-Airport-
Riverside.  This was considered to be a strategic site for business with very 
good communication links. 
 

7. NOISE ACTION PLAN 
 
Michael Glen and Iain McDermott-Paine explained that the Noise Action Plan 
2014 had now been formally adopted by the Secretary of State.  Mr Glen then 
gave a presentation showing the noise contours highlighting an extra 200m 
added to Southern 55db contour – which included an extra 50 houses.  There 
had also been a reduction of 780m to North. There were minimal changes in 
comparison to 2012 the modal split indicated that more aircraft arrived from 
the South and departed to the North as follows: 

 
2012  69% south 31% north  
2013  56% south  44% north.  
 

8. MONITORING OF THE FLYING CONTROLS AGREEMENT 
 
Neil Scott presented a report summarising the statistics of operational activity 
at Southampton Airport for the May to August period of 2014 provided by 
Southampton Airport in accordance with the Flying Controls Agreement 
between the owners of the airport and the Borough Council. The report also 
compared the figures with those for the previous year.  Mr Scott explained 
that the monitoring showed movements well within the flying controls 
agreement.  
 
The summary of airport operational activity for the May to August period of 
2014 was noted.  

4



5 

 

 
 

9. TECHNICAL WORKING GROUP FEEDBACK 
 
The minutes of the Technical Working Group meeting held on 30 September 
were tabled (and are attached to these minutes).  
 

10. DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING 
 
The next meeting was to be held on Friday 13 February at 2pm in The Spitfire 
Room, Southampton International Airport.   
 
M5258 

5



6

This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 

CONSULTATIVE COMMITTEE 
 

Managing Director’s Report 
February 2015 

 
1. Total Passenger Numbers – September to December 2014 

Between Septemer and December 2014, Southampton Airport welcomed 615,448 passengers – a 9.6% 
increase on the previous year.  This contributes to a total of 1,830,257  passengers for 2014, an increase 
of 6.2% on 2013’s numbers. 

 

 

 2014 2013 

Jan 95,791 88,205 

Feb 105,805 100,776 

Mar 129,115 124,489 

Apr 148,172 136,765 

May 166,510 157,691 

Jun 176,392 169,317 

Jul 192,353 188,780 

Aug 200,671 195,225 

Sep 177,067 174,167 

Oct 165,188 145,813 

Nov 140,627 125,950 

Dec 132,566 115,811 

Total 1,830,257 1,722,989 

% change 6.2% - 

Agenda Item 3

7



2 

2. Total Aircraft Movements - September to December 2014 

Total Aircraft Movements include: Passenger and Cargo Flights, Training Flights, Air Ambulance, 
General Aviation, Military, Air Taxi and Positioning Flights. 

 

 

  Sep Oct Nov Dec 
Total 
for year 

2014 3789 3609 3176 2865 40374 

2013 3851 3433 2979 2714 40501 

3. Airport & Airline News 

Change in Ownership 

Southampton Airport has become part of AGS (Aberdeen, Glasgow and Southampton) Airports Ltd.  
AGS is an equal partnership between Ferrovial and Macquarie Infrastructure & Real Assets (MIRA). This 
partnership now owns Southampton Airport plus Glasgow and Aberdeen Airports. 

In the short term, at least, there will be very little change. Indeed, it is very much “business as usual” at 
Southampton Airport.  A brand new governance structure is being established and details of the new 
Board of Directors can be found on the Southampton Airport website.    

Southampton Airport will still continue to operate independently as an airport under local 
management in a similar way to before, however at the same time we will also look to maximise the 
opportunities of sharing and implementing best practice across the three airports in a number of areas 
in future. 

Flybe introduces Milan and Corsica routes 

Flybe has announced its full 2015 Summer schedule from Southampton Airport featuring 28 routes 
with a total choice of up to 320 flights a week across its extensive UK and Europe network. This 
includes two brand new routes to Bastia (Corsica) and Milan Malpensa as well as the continuation of its 
sun routes to Alicante, Faro, Malaga and Palma Mallorca. 

This will also be the first summer for the airline’s Flybe Shuttle service to and from Jersey and Aberdeen 
with stop offs at Southampton and Leeds Bradford airports. Flybe’s ski routes to Chambery, Geneva, 

8



3 

 

Grenoble and Salzburg will extend through to April 2015 to accommodate Easter holiday travel. Flights 
to regional France are boosted with the return for peak summer travel to destinations including 
Avignon, Bordeaux, Brest and Limoges. 
 
New connections to North America 
 
Flybe has signed a new codeshare agreement with Dublin-based airline Aer 
Lingus for flights from Southampton Airport. This enables Southampton 
passengers to access, via a single stop in Dublin, an even wider range of 
destinations across North America including Boston, New York, San Francisco, 
Orlando, Chicago and Toronto.  
 
Customers just need to book their flight via the Aer Lingus website or 
through local travel agents and, with just one airline ticket, they can enjoy 
seamless onward flights through Dublin. The added benefit is that Dublin 
Airport also provides US Customs pre-clearance meaning that passengers 
arrive in the United States as a 'domestic passenger' and can proceed straight 
through to arrivals at their destination, by-passing lengthy US Customs and 
Immigration queues. 
 
New Connections to Scandinavia 
 

Eastern Airways has signed a new agreement with Wideroe which will 
provide Southampton Airport travellers with greater Norwegian 
connections via Aberdeen, along with improved access to the 
Norwegian airline’s comprehensive network of Scandinavian 
destinations. 
 
This codeshare partnership and ticketing agreement will enable 
Eastern Airways to offer connections from Southampton to Stavanger 
and Bergen via Aberdeen.  Passengers’ hold baggage will be checked 

in at Southampton and collected at their end destination.  Onward connections in Norway are also 
available on Wideroe’s network, including those to Haugesund, Kristiansand, Skien, Kristiansund, 
Molde and Sandefjord.   
 
New special summer 2015 Lorient flights to start from Southampton Airport  
 
A special series of flights in summer 2015 are being introduced on selected dates from Southampton 
Airport to Lorient in Brittany, France by Eastern Airways.  This will open up Brittany’s dramatic south 
west coastline and Lorient – Brittany’s fourth largest city and bustling sea port. 
 
The flights are set to run on Friday 10 July, Monday 13 July, Friday 7 August, Monday 10 August, Friday 
14 August and Monday 17 August 2015. Eastern Airways is Europe’s leading providing of fixed wing air 
services for the oil and gas industry and has recently been awarded the European Regional Airline of 
the Year gold award 2014/15 by the European Regions Airline Association (ERA).   
 
Southampton Airport targets Dutch market 
 
The airport’s marketing team have been working closely with Tourism 
South East to bring more visitors to the region. The most recent 
initiative saw staff exhibiting at The Netherlands’ largest travel 
exhibition, Vakantiebeurs, in January – promoting travel through 
Southampton Airport to visit the South Coast, to Dutch, Belgian and 
French customers. 

9



4 

 

 
New Breeze Through Volunteers 
With a passion for providing exceptional customer service, our new team of volunteers will be offering 
a helping hand to our passengers. They will be complementing our brilliant Airport Ambassador team 
through assisting with queries, providing information and delivering a Breeze Through experience for 
our passengers. 
 
4. Management & Staff 
 

Breeze Through Awards – September to December 2014 
At Southampton Airport we pride ourselves on helping make our passengers’ journey as easy as 
possible. Our Breeze Through Awards recognise and reward those staff who go the extra mile.  
 
September 2014: Sindy Mourita (Costa) 
A customer reported a mobile telephone as missing and Sindy’s prompt actions of contacting security 
to ascertain if the phone had been handed in, followed by contacting the Airport Duty Manager due to 
it not being located has led to a passenger being arrested for theft. Her swift actions allowed the ADM 
to review the CCTV, speak with the affected customer and involve the police prior to the person 
involved boarding his aircraft.  
 
October 2014: Charlotte Scullard (Airport Ambassador) 
Charlotte received a call from the “Oasis of the Seas” cruise ship about a lost passport for a passenger 
who had flown through the airport that day. Charlotte completed her normal checks and then rang 
Belfast Airport, and Swissport at Belfast who advised the aircraft was now on route to Birmingham. She 
contacted Swissport at Birmingham where the passport was found on the aircraft, so Charlotte 
arranged for it to return to Belfast and Swissport put it on the Belfast service to Southampton the next 
day.  The passport owner came to collect the passport the next day then travelled to Gatwick, flew to 
Spain and re-joined the ship at Vigo 
 
November 2014: Chris Slater (Swissport) 
While turning around an aircraft, Chris took the time to stop off-loading bags to help a lady who was 
struggling to hold onto the hand rails, as well as her coat and bag.  He took hold of the lady’s 
belongings, which allowed her to disembark the aircraft safely.  Shortly after this, Chris also helped 
another passenger - a lady with a young baby.  Given the pressures to turn around aircraft, it’s great to 
see that Chris is still aware of the people around him, taking the time to make a difference to our 
passengers. 
 
December 2014: Luke Mosley (Airport Duty Manager) 
Luke received nominations for a number of occasions where he demonstrated exceptional levels of 
customer service.  The first was when Luke showed compassion to a lone female passenger who’d had a 
difficult experience, including cancellations, resulting in a 12 hour journey.  Luke oversaw the 
management of a mixed team of airport colleagues during a period of heavy congestion on the airport 
approach road. Luke also assisted a family, of which one of the passengers had an injury, as they 
arrived at Southampton Airport in January 2014.  Luke liaised with them throughout the year and met 
them as they were travelling through the airport in December,  turning what was a challenging 
customer complaint into a positive outcome. 
 
5. Noise 
 
Fifteen complaints were recorded between September and December 2014. Refer to Appedix A for 
more information. 
 

10



5 

 

6. Vortex 
 
There were no reported occurrences of vortex damage between September and December 2014. 
 

7. Community and charity 
 
Bitterne Park School 10th Anniversary 

 
Southampton Airport and Bitterne Park School celebrated 
the 10th anniversary of a unique partnership at the end of 
last year. Over the last ten years the airport has provided 
grants, guest speakers, airport tours and work experience 
opportunities for high-flyers at Bitterne Park School. Pupils 
have put on performances at the airport to entertain 
passengers and the organisations jointly created The 
Destinations Lounge at the school - a learning and careers 
advice centre for students and the local community, 
incorporating the latest learning resources and technologies. 
  

At the anniversary event, Bitterne Park School unveiled a ten-year timeline charting the partnership 
and the airport presented the school with a brand new trophy to award outstanding achievement in 
travel and tourism students. Teams from both organisations were also treated to a fantastic 
performance from the school’s music students – including a rendition of ‘Fly Me To The Moon’.  
 
Airport’s Christmas Video Involves Community 
 
Southampton Airport’s heart-warming Christmas film was created using the help of the local music, 
acting and film-making communities.  The video follows several passengers having emotional reunions 
at Christmas time at Southampton Airport and is backed by an exclusive new Christmas song, ‘Happy 
Holidays’.  
 
A young student was chosen to write a song especially for the video. Abigail Caveney, aged 14, from 
Upper Shirley High School, started composing last year when she entered the prestigious Britten Young 
Songwriter competition. She was one of two overall winners in Aldeburgh Music’s competition to mark 
the centenary of the birth of British composer Benjamin Britten. As well as composing, Abigail sings, 
plays the piano, ukulele and oboe.  Local band ‘Eugenie and the Lamps’ came along to perform the 
song, which includes Abigail’s sister Lydia plus friends Ella, Rowan, Ben and James - all of whom attend 
Barton Peveril Sixth Form College.  
 
A host of actors volunteered their time to take part in the Christmas video too, from local drama 
groups. Maskers Theatre Company helped the airport find five actors, one actor was from Hamble 
Players, a couple of local ‘undiscovered’ actors played key parts and extras came from Curdridge Drama 
Group. Not to mention Harry the acting dog, from a local dog trainer! 
 
Southampton Airport unveils the World’s Biggest Mo 
 
Southampton Airport showed its support for Movember last 
autumn, by unveiling the World’s Biggest Mo on the 
ground. The painted moustache measured a massive 250m 
by 60m and was located on airport land, running parallel to 
the runway. 
 
Inspired by the efforts of gents across the world who 
cultivate moustaches annually, the airport decided to create 

11



6 

 

the giant moustache in its grounds to raise awareness of the charity. Movember raises money to 
change the face of men’s health, specifically prostate cancer, testicular cancer and men’s mental health. 
The Massive Mo was the length of five Olympic swimming pools (or seven and a half Dash 8 Q400s, a 
common aircraft that can be seen at Southampton Airport).   
 
Southampton Airport Intern scoops top award 
 

Southampton Airport’s Market Research Intern, Ethan Harris, won the 
Community Award at the University of Southampton’s Excel 
Southampton Awards 2014 – coming top out of 250 intern students. 
Ethan was carrying out complex research to support route 
development for Southampton Airport, working closely with partners 
such as Hampshire County Council and Business South.  
 
The Excel Southampton Placement Programme was launched in 2009 
and gives students the opportunity to increase their knowledge and 
gain commercial awareness in an industry setting. Ethan has just 

completed his 12 week placement at Southampton Airport and won the Community Award, which is all 
about effectively integrating into the workplace and recognising one’s role within the wider team 
environment.  
 
 8. Online & Social Media 
 

Twitter 
The account has reached over 24,096 followers and has proved invaluable for providing instant updates 
in times of disruption, is followed by local media and is being used as a customer services tool.  To 
follow the airport, go to www.twitter.com/sou_airport  
 
Facebook 
Our Facebook page continues to grow and our engagement with fans is significantly higher than most 
other regional airports. Through competitions, surveys and photo sharing the number of ‘likes’ now sits 
at over 5,491. www.facebook.com/sou.airport  
 
YouTube 
Our YouTube account features a range of videos of the airport, our airlines, visiting aircraft and 
passenger assistance features. The current amount of views is 26,867. www.youtube.com/SOUAirport  

12



7 

 

Appendix A: Noise & Complaints Summary 
Supporting statistics 

 
 

Noise Complaints 
During September to December 2014, the comparison between years 2012/2013/2014 is as follows: 

 
2012   2013   2014       
   

Sept     23    9    7 
Oct      3    4    3 
Nov     3    0    0 
Dec     0    0    5  
Total     29    13    15 
        

 
Complaints by Household 

The total number of individual complaining households for the period September to December is as 
follows: 

  
2012   2013  2014    

      29    11    13 
     
 
 

End of Year Review 2014 
 
Complaint Numbers 
 

Year Total Complaints Households Aircraft Movements 

2014 57 43 40374 

2013 77 57 40501 

2012 94 80 43285 

2011 71 66 45704 

2010 320 161 45367 

 
0 complaints were recorded in January, February and November 2014. 
 
A total of 4 NPR deviations were recorded. Full investigations were carried out and corrective 
measures were implemented. 
 
4 meetings held at the airport with residents concerning noise and routing 
 
1 complaint concerning the BBMF Lancaster positioning to land at Southampton ahead of D-Day 
celebrations in France 
 
1 complaint from the Newbury area concerning Southampton arrivals. Aircraft subsequently found 
to be over 9000ft 
 
3 complaints concerning the operation of the Santa flight 

13



14

This page is intentionally left blank



September - December 2014

4 Month Summary 

Complaints by Household Total complaints by area

Area

No. of 

Individual 

Households Noise Low Flying Routing Training Out of Hours Total

Bitterne Park 1 0 0 1 0 0 1

Burseldon 2 0 0 2 0 0 2

Chandlers Ford 1 0 1 0 0 0 1

Compton 2 1 0 1 0 0 2

Eastleigh 4 6 0 0 0 0 6

Otterbourne 1 0 0 1 0 0 1

Shirley/Bassett 1 1 0 0 0 0 1

Winchester 1 0 0 1 0 0 1

Total: 13 8 1 6 0 0 15

Summary of Complaint Category

Sept Oct Nov Dec Total

Noise 4 1 0 3 8

Low Flying 1 0 0 0 1

Routing 2 2 0 2 6

Training Flights 0 0 0 0 0

Out of Hours 0 0 0 0 0

Other 0 0 0 0 0

Totals 7 3 0 5 15

Reason for Complaints

Routing 6

Noise 8

Low Flying 1

Out of Hours 0

Other 0

Out of Hours Flights are flights between 23:00 - 06:00

15



16

This page is intentionally left blank



Eastleigh Borough Council 
 

1 

SOUTHAMPTON INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 
CONSULTATIVE COMMITTEE 

 
Friday 13 February 2015 

 
SOUTHAMPTON INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT – 

MONITORING OF THE FLYING CONTROLS AGREEMENT 
 

Report of the Head of Regeneration and Planning Policy,  
Eastleigh Borough Council 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that this summary of airport operational activity for the 
September to December period of 2014 be noted.  
 

___________________________________________ 
 
SUMMARY  
 
This report summarises the statistics of operational activity at Southampton 
Airport for the September to December period of 2014 provided by 
Southampton Airport in accordance with the Flying Controls Agreement 
between the owners of the airport and the Borough Council. The report also 
compares the figures with those for the previous year. 
 

____________________________________________ 
 

 
Aircraft Movements: September to December 2014  

 

1. The monitoring statistics for this period are set out in the attached 
Appendix prepared by Southampton Airport. The total number of aircraft 
movements during this four-month period was 13,439. This was 462 
more than the total over the same period in 2013, a modest increase of 
3.56%.  

2. The increase in the number of aircraft movements brings the total 
number of aircraft movements in 2014 to 41,089, a small increase of 
1.45% on the 2013 total.  

3. There were no training movements during this four-month period and 
none were recorded in the same period in 2013. 

4. Helicopter movements totalled 92 during this period, 11 more than in the 
same period last year but within the usual range for the number of such 
movements. 

Agenda Item 5

17



Eastleigh Borough Council 
 

2 

5. The Appendix sets out, as usual, the number of movements each month 
to the north and south of the airport. Note, however, that the figures 
To/From the North in Appendix 6a have been transposed and should 
read as shown below: 

          Sep Oct Nov Dec 

To/From the 
North         

Dep Runway 02 1106   259   548 584 

Arr Runway 20   747 1555 1060 853 

 

6. The figures show the close balance of the total number of movements at 
each end of the runway month by month. The impact of different weather 
and wind conditions from month to month is apparent in the table above 
in the much higher number of departures to the north in September than 
in the other months.     

 Movements During Night Hours: September to December 2014 

7. There were only 5 aircraft movements during night hours over this four-
month period. The Flying Controls Agreement allows for up to 10 night 
movements in any calendar month, in addition to ‘exempt’ movements 
attributable to weather conditions or defined emergencies directly 
affecting that movement. 

8. Of these night movements, one was exempt from the restrictions in the 
Flying Controls Agreement. The number of non-exempt movements was 
clearly well within the limits set out in the Flying Controls Agreement and 
all of the night movements took place within 15 minutes of the night 
closure period.      

 Conclusions 

9. Monitoring continues to show airport operational activity to be well within 
the terms of the Flying Controls Agreement and shows some growth in 
activity compared with the previous year in this period and over the year 
as a whole. 

 
PAUL RAMSHAW 

Head of Regeneration and Planning Policy 
 
 
Contact:  Tony Wright 
Tel:  023 8068 8245 
Email:  tony.wright@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Date:  30 January 2015 
 
Appendices attached: one 

18



EBC Flying Control Statistics

September - December 2014

Total Aircraft Movements
Total Movements Day Movements Night Movements

Aircraft Type Sep Oct Nov Dec Sep Oct Nov Dec Sep Oct Nov Dec

Non CH3 Jet 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Training Movements 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Helicopter 34 18 26 14 34 18 26 14 0 0 0 0

Fourth Schedule 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

All other aircraft 3755 3591 3150 2851 3753 3589 3150 2850 2 2 0 1

Totals 3789 3609 3176 2865 3787 3607 3176 2864 2 2 0 1

Total Night Movements - Summary

Month Exempt Month Total Cum Total 2014 14

Total Movements Non Exempt Non Exempt

Sep

Oct

Nov

Dec

Night Exemptions

Date Time A/D Type

31/10/2014 23:13 A DH4

Night Movements
Date Time A/D Type

13-Sep-2014 23:08 A E95

26-Sep-2014 23:01 A E95

26-Oct-2014 23:09 A J41

14-Dec-2014 23:10 D 752

when it is 2300 - 0730Hrs (Local time).

Night is defined as 2300 - 0600Hrs (Local time), except on Saturday pm to Sunday am

All Times are local time

Delayed Schedule

Late Crew Report

GFBEI     

GFBEI     

Delayed Schedule

1

2

0

1

16

17

17

18

0

1

0

0

2

2

0

1

Reason

Reg Reason

Reg

Delayed Schedule

GJMCE     

Technical DefectGECOG     

GMAJA     

19



EBC Flying Control Statistics

Runway Use (All Movements) - Appendix 6a

2014

Sep Oct Nov Dec

To/From the North

Dep Runway 02 747 1555 1060 853

Arr Runway 20 1106 259 548 584

  

 

To/From the South    

Dep Runway 20 790 1545 1040 848

Arr Runway 02 1146 250 528 580

  

    

Total Movements 3789 3609 3176 2865

   

   

Runway Use (Air Transport Movements) - Appendix 6b

2006

Sep Oct Nov Dec

To/From the North

Dep Runway 02 952 240 487 527

Arr Runway 20 666 1367 943 741

Sep Oct Nov Dec

To/From the South

Dep Runway 20 689 1359 918 747

Arr Runway 02 977 230 460 527

    

Totals Movements 3284 3196 2808 2542

    

 

20



EBC Flying Control Statistics
Arrivals & Departures from the same runway direction by main types

of commercial aircraft - APPENDIX 6c.

To/From the North Sep Oct Nov Dec

Aerospatiale ATR Series 85 119 104 104

Airbus A319 4

BAe 146 Series 1

Boeing 737 Series 1 1

Boeing 757 Series 2

British Aerospace Jetstream 31 85 84 42 0

British Aerospace Jetstream 41 64 29 24 16

De Havilland Dash 8 Series 1146 1072 1003 905

Embraer 170 Series 4 4 88 35

Embraer 190 Series 134 172 77 94

Embraer RJ135 32 32 35

Embraer RJ145 Amazon 1 3 4 3
Fairchild Dornier Do.228 1
Fokker 100 1 1
Mk III Trislander 102 90 74 71
Saab 2000 7 5 3

Total 1621 1613 1455 1275

To/From the South Sep Oct Nov Dec

Aerospatiale ATR Series 79 117 108 100

Airbus A319 2

BAe 146 Series 1

Boeing 737 Series 1 1

Boeing 757 Series 2

British Aerospace Jetstream 31 71 82 40 0

British Aerospace Jetstream 41 62 27 20 14

De Havilland Dash 8 Series 1197 1065 959 897

Embraer 170 Series 4 4 79 36
Embraer 190 Series 164 170 80 111
Embraer RJ135 32 34 35
Embraer RJ145 Amazon 1 3 2 1
Fairchild Dornier Do.228 1
Fokker 100 1 1

Mk III Trislander 98 90 72 71
Saab 2000 0 7 5 3

Total 1676 1598 1401 1275

Runway use by non commercial/military aircraft - APPENDIX 6d

To/From the North Sep Oct Nov Dec

0 0 0 0C130 (Lockheed Hercules)

21



22

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Technical Working Group 
 

Tuesday 27th January 2015 
 

Spitfire Meeting Room, Terminal, Southampton Airport 
 

Present: 
David Lees (DL)    (Southampton International Airport Limited) 
Iain McDermott-Paine (IMP)   (Southampton International Airport Limited) 
Jan Halliday (JH)     (Southampton International Airport Limited) 
Mike Glen (MG)     (Southampton International Airport Limited) 
Nigel Spence (NS)    (Southampton International Airport Limited) 
Tom Watmough (TW)    (Southampton International Airport Limited) 
Colin Houston (CH)    (NATS) 
Neil Scott (NSc)     (Eastleigh Borough Council) 
Tony Wright (TWr)    (Eastleigh Borough Council) 
Godfrey Olson (GO)    (Eastleigh Borough Council) 
Martin Lowe (ML)    (Southampton City Council) 
 

Apologies: 
Graham Salmons (GS)    (Flybe) 
David Ingram (DI)    (Winchester City Council) 
 
Minutes – Shona Hogg (SH)    (Southampton International Airport Limited) 
 

Description Action 
Owner 

Welcome and Apologies 
IMP welcomed all to the meeting and introductions were made around the room. 
 

Noise Statistics Review 
MG took the forum through a review of the statistics for the last quarter of 2014. 
 

Noise Complaints by Month – September – December 2014 

 
2012 2013 2014 

Sept 23 9 7 

Oct 3 4 3 

Nov 3 0 0 

Dec 0 0 5 

Total 29 13 15 

 

Noise Complaints by Individual Household 

 
Households 

2012 29 

2013 11 

2014 13 

No vortex strikes reported during this period. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 6

23



 
TWr discussed the four complaints from Eastleigh and questioned whether it was a regular 
complainer or a specific incident which had led to it – MG reported it was around the Santa 
flight in December 2014. IMP countered that it was unlikely that a 757 would operate the 
Lapland flight this year and was likely to be a 737 instead but this couldn’t be confirmed at 
this point. 
 

Year 
Total 
Complaints 

Households 
Aircraft 
Movements 

2014 57 43 40374 

2013 77 57 40501 

2012 94 80 43285 

2011 71 66 45704 

2010 320 161 45367 

 
SIAL have seen a decrease of 26% in the amount of complaints received during 2014 vs 
2013 and a reduction of 24.6% in individual households. 
 
Complaints Vs Runway Direction 

 
Ops to South Ops to North 

 

 
Arr 02 Dep 20 Arr 20 Dep 02 u/k 

2014 15 10 9 15 8 

Total 25 24 8 

 
GO questioned the time of operation of the Santa flight which MG stated had come in close to 
airport close on the Saturday and had left early (around 0830) on the Sunday morning. 
 
GO felt that noise complaints were down to an acceptable minimal and that a lot of good work 
had taken place to get us to that position. IMP gave credit to MG for the amount of work 
which had taken place on noise complaints. 

 
Aurigny Fleet Replacement 
The programme for the replacement of the fleet has been delayed. A Dornier 228 training 
flight will take place at 1400 on Wednesday 28

th
 January 2015. 2 Trislander aircraft have 

been refurbished to allow for continuation of service, the phase out (of Trislanders) will be 
staged. The new aircraft will follow the NPRs. Four new aircraft will join the fleet.  

 
Noise Preferred Routing Deviation (NPR) 
MG gave the forum an update on this item. It is proposed that the following paragraph will be 
included in SIAL’s Conditions of Use which are published in April 2015. 
 
Southampton International Airport Ltd operates a number of “Noise Preferred Routings,” as 
published in the UK AIP textual data. Aircrews utilising Southampton Airport have overall 
responsibility to brief themselves fully on the procedures to ensure that the impact of the 
airport operation on local communities is minimised. 
  
Possible breaches of the SIAL “Noise Preferred Routes,” may be identified by a number of 
parties including SIAL staff, NATS staff and other third party stakeholders including the 
Councils or members of the public through the noise complaints process. In all cases the 
Flight Evaluation Unit will research the circumstances and respond to the complainant and 
carry out any further necessary investigation. 
  
The aircraft operator will be required to respond to any investigation within 30 days. 
Breaches may be acceptable for reasons of safety, weather avoidance or to comply with ATC 
instructions, provided that evidence is supplied such as the pilot’s report, weather data 
reports or other documentation. If an operator accepts the breach, or if no reply is received, 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

24



or if the explanation is unsatisfactory in the opinion of the Head of Airside and Fire, an invoice 
will be raised for the surcharge. 
  
The surcharge will be waived if the operator demonstrates a willingness to cooperate in an 
effort to prevent any reoccurrences. 
  
A surcharge of £300 will be applied to each breach of the preferential routes. 
  
Any money received from surcharges will be used for the benefit of the local community 
around the airport. 
 
MG reported that the figure of £300 had been arrived at following benchmarking of four other 
airports in the UK. IMP discussed the occasions where we would enforce it. MG indicated that 
we are dealing with small numbers of reported instances with only four occasions being 
reported in 2014. IMP reported that any breaches would be reported through this forum. 
 

Noise Action Plan Update 
Nothing of note to report on other than the proposed implementation of a charging scheme for 
NPR Infringements which was discussed above. 
 

Aviation Policy Framework Update 
Nothing tabled as no updates to give at this present time it was agreed to keep this on the 
agenda as a standard item. 
 
IMP reported that the position remains unchanged (since the last update) until after the 
election in May 2015. 

 
Airspace Change Proposal Update (ACP) 
IMP gave an update on the ACP which had been submitted and was in progress. Procedures 
are currently 4 years old and are under review. CH & IMP are working closely with other 
NATS colleagues at Swanwick to progress this issue further. It is hoped that this will be 
completed by the end of 2015. 

 
Review of Previous Minutes 
Minutes of the meeting held in September were reviewed, no amends requested therefore 
agreed and signed off. 
 
TWr requested an update on the new owners from DL now that the sale had concluded. DL 
reported that it was a joint split of ownership between Ferrovial and Maquarie and that SIAL 
were now part of the group known as AGS Limited (Aberdeen, Glasgow and Southampton). 
Sale completed in mid-December 2014 and that the new company is still in the early stages 
of setting up board governance and structures. This year would see a large number of IT 
systems (circa 50) being separated from the previous group (Heathrow Airport Holdings Ltd). 
TWr questioned whether investment would be more forthcoming from the new owners; DL 
reported that each project would be considered based on the merits of the business case 
which was put forward. 
 
GO questioned whether or not the new owners would be looking at a relief road for the 
airport, opening up the land to the north and the proposed new hotel development which had 
been discussed. DL confirmed that all plans would be subject to the scrutiny of each project’s 
business case although the owners were very interested in the new hotel development which 
was being proposed. GO discussed opening up the NE corner to alleviate the pressure on 
roads in Eastleigh and also the impact on air pollution and what grants could be sought from 
Government to progress with such plans. 
 
GO discussed SIAL applying for a grant for Regional Air Connectivity Funding; DL confirmed 
that they had applied for this grant which was available through this new government 
scheme. 
 

Agenda for Consultative Committee 
DL reported that the Noise Statistic Review would be included in his update at the 
Consultative Committee along with NPR Deviations and ACP update. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

25



 

Memorandum of Understanding (WCC) 
JH reported that work had taken place on the MoU in late autumn 2014; DI was taking the 
proposed MoU to WCC and also WAG for feedback. Nothing further tabled as DI not present 
to give an update. Item deferred to May’s meeting.  
 

Any Other Business 
TWr reported that he would shortly be retiring from Eastleigh Borough Council and would 
therefore no longer be attending the TWG or the Consultative Committee. DL expressed on 
behalf of SIAL his gratitude for the work and contributions which Tony had brought to these 
forums over the years. 
 
GO expressed concern around the MoU not being agreed yet and wondered whether it would 
be brought to the Consultative Committee, DL felt the onus should sit with DI to update SIAL 
on the changes which had been discussed in late 2014. JH had been liaising with DI on this 
and JH agreed to speak to DI ahead of the Consultative Committee in February. JH to ensure 
that a copy of the MoU is sent out to GO ahead of the CC. 
 
DL announced that he was passing Chairmanship of this forum going forward to IMP. JH 
tabled and the forum agreed that this meeting could be reduced to 1.5 hours going forward. 
Following a discussion round the table the May meeting was brought forward by one week to 
20

th
 May 2015 and the invites were amended to reflect the reduction in duration of this 

meeting. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

JH 
 
 
 

 
 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
Wednesday 20

th
 May 2015 

1330 – 1500 
Spitfire Meeting Room, Terminal, Southampton Airport 

 

26


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	3 Airport Managing Director's Report
	Appendix

	5 Monitoring of the Flying Controls Agreement
	Appendix: Flying Controls statistics Sep - Dec 2014

	6 Technical Working Group feedback

